Public Document Pack

NOTICE OF MEETING
CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING
MONDAY, 16 MARCH 2015 AT 5.30 PM
EXECUTIVE MEETING ROOM - THE GUILDHALL
Telephone enquiries to Joanne Wildsmith
Email: joanne.wildsmith@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING
Councillor Steve Wemyss (Conservative)
Group Spokespersons
Councillor David Fuller, Liberal Democrat
Councillor David Horne, Labour
Councillor Stuart Potter, UK Independence Party

(NB

This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on
the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk
Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are
accepted.
AGENDA
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Declaration of Interests

3

The Redress Schemes for Lettings Agents and Managing Agents (Pages
1 - 4)

1

The purpose of the report by the Head of Corporate Assets & Property
Services is:
(i) To appraise the Cabinet Member for Housing on the implications of the
Redress Schemes for Lettings Agency Work and Property
Management Work (Requirement to belong to a Scheme etc.)
(England) Order 2014.
(ii) To seek approval from the Cabinet Member for Housing that the Private
Sector Housing Team undertake proactive enforcement in respect
of the Order.
RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member for Housing:

4

(1)

Approves that the enforcement of this legislation is
undertaken proactively by the Private Sector Housing Team (and
the income generated from any fines imposed is kept within the
Housing Standards budget).

(2)

Gives delegated authority to the Head of Corporate Assets,
Business and Standards to review level of fine imposed
dependent on circumstances and representation.

(3)

Authorises engagement with neighbouring authorities to
discuss the manner in which they will be addressing enforcement
of this legislation.

Tipton House and Edgbaston House Refurbishment consultants (Pages 5
- 12)
The report by the Head of Housing & Property Services seeks:
(i) permission to appoint an external lead consultant to undertake a
feasibility study, design and manage a scheme to improve and
maintain 2No high rise blocks of flats, Tipton House and Edgbaston
House.
(ii) permission to initially spend £100K for external lead consultants to
undertake a full structural survey and feasibility study, providing
detailed costed options to achieve the client brief for the project.
RECOMMENDED:
(1)

That approval is given to accept a tender for a lead consultant
based on an estimated overall budget of up to £800K for the
initial feasibility study, design and management of the scheme.

(2)

That following a full tender evaluation, authority to enter into
contract with the preferred bidder is delegated to the Head of
Housing and Property Services in consultation with the Head of

2

Finance and Section 151 Officer.
(3)

5

That approval is given to spend up to £100K for the initial
structural and feasibility report including costed options.

Council Housing Maintenance & Improvements and housing IT business
software 2015/ 16 (Pages 13 - 60)
The report by the Head of Housing and Property Services is to inform
members of the spending proposed for the next financial year for revenue and
capital funded maintenance and improvement programmes together with
Housing IT Business Software and to seek approval to incur expenditure in
respect of the capital schemes and rolling programmes and to show how the
budgets have been allocated on an area office basis.
RECOMMENDED:
(1) That the area programmes and allocation of finance for the
funding of the Revenue Budgets for repairs and maintenance of
dwellings be noted.
(2) That the capital budgets listed in Appendix B and Appendix C
commencing in 2015/2016 be approved and the Local Authority
Housing Manager be authorised under Financial Rules, Section
B14 to proceed with schemes within the sums approved.
(3) That the Head of Financial Services and Section 151 Officer
financial appraisal be approved for the capital programme - global
provision.

6

Delivering Replacement Homes - Phase 2 (Pages 61 - 66)
The report by the Head of Housing & Property Services seeks permission and
approval for a programme of 189 replacement Council homes at an overall cost of
£22.903m. All new build homes will require planning applications. The proposed
developments in Havant will be built to be sustainable homes code 3 standard, whilst
the development within Portsmouth will meet code 5 of the sustainable homes
standards.
RECOMMENDED

That the Cabinet Member for Housing request that City Council approve the
following:
(1)
I.

the following Capital Expenditure amounting to £22.903m:
A development of 67 units (a mixture of flats and houses) on a
disused allotment site in Havant at a total cost of £8.119m

II.

A development of 50 units (a mixture of houses and flats) at
3

Kingsclere Avenue at a total cost of £6.059m.
III.

A development of 40 units (a mixture of flats and houses) at
Blendworth Crescent as a total cost of £4.847m.

IV.

A development of 8 houses at Holybourne Road at a total cost
of £969.400.

V.

A development of 24 flats to be built on the existing Buckland
Family centre site at a total cost of £2.908m

(2) to fund the £22.903m of Capital Expenditure, additional borrowing of up
to £15.12m over the next 2 years, alongside the funding already
approved within the existing capital programme.
(3) that subject to the requirements of recommendation 4, authority be
delegated to the Head of Housing and Property Services in consultation
with the Head of Finance & S151 Officer to amend the composition and
spending profile of the proposed schemes in order to meet planning
and design requirements.
(4) that a financial appraisal approved by the Head of Finance & S151
Officer must be completed prior to the commencement of any scheme,
that confirms that the proposed scheme remains the most viable
option and provides an overall benefit to the 30 year HRA Business
Plan

Members of the public are now permitted to use both audio visual recording devices and social
media during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting or records
those stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at
meetings open to the public is available on the Council's website and posters on the wall of the
meeting's venue.

4

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3

Agenda item:
Title of meeting:

Cabinet Member For Housing

Date of meeting:

16th March 2015

Subject:

The Redress Scheme for Letting Agents and Managing Agents.

Report by:

Alan Cufley Head of Corporate Assets, Business & Standards

Wards affected:

All

Key decision:

No

Full Council decision:

No

1.

2.

3.

Purpose of report
1.1

To appraise the Cabinet Member for Housing on the implications of the
Redress Schemes for Lettings Agency Work and Property Management
Work (Requirement to belong to a Scheme etc.) (England) Order 2014.

1.2

To seek approval from the Cabinet Member for Housing that the Private
Sector Housing Team undertake proactive enforcement in respect of the
Order

Recommendations
It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Housing;
2.1

Approves that the enforcement of this legislation is undertaken
proactively by the Private Sector Housing Team (and the income
generated from any fines imposed is kept within the Housing Standards
budget).

2.2

Gives delegated authority to the Head of Corporate Assets, Business and
Standards to review level of fine imposed dependent on circumstances
and representation

2.3

Authorises engagement with neighbouring authorities to discuss the
manner in which they will be addressing enforcement of this legislation

Background:
3.1

New legislation has been introduced which means that from 1 October 2014 it
has been a legal requirement for lettings agents and property managers in
England to join one of three Government approved redress schemes.

1 1
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

4.

5.

3.2

Whilst the majority of lettings agents and property managers provide a good
service there are a minority who offer a poor service and engage in
unacceptable practices. This requirement will mean that tenants and landlords,
with agents in the private rented sector; leaseholders and freeholders dealing
with property managers in the residential sector will be able to complain to an
independent person about the service they have received.

3.3

Ultimately the requirement to belong to a redress scheme will help weed out
bad agents and property managers and drive up standards throughout the
private rented market.

3.4

The requirement to be part of one of the recognised schemes must be enforced
by the local authority (Private Sector Housing Team), where an agent or
property manager who should have joined a scheme has not done so, can
impose a fine of up to £5,000.

Process Involved in Issuing a Fine.
4.1

The authority must give written notice of their intention to impose a penalty
setting out the reasons and the amount of the penalty to the person or company
that has not complied with the legislation.

4.2

The lettings agent or property manager will have 28 days to make written
representations or objections to the Private Sector Housing team, starting from
the day after the date the notice of intent was sent.

4.3

At the end of the 28 day period the enforcement authority must decide, having
taken into account any representations received, whether to impose a fine and,
if so, issue a final notice to the lettings agent or property manager giving at least
28 days for payment to be made.

4.4

There is no limit to the number of penalties that may be imposed on an
individual lettings agent or property manager if they continue to fail to join a
scheme.

Reasons for recommendations:
5.1

The Private Sector Housing team currently work very closely with the majority of
professional letting and management companies within the city. The team also
deals with individual landlords and locally based, non-commercial, managing
agents who may, due to this legislation, be required to register but have not fully
understood the requirements set by the legislation.

5.2

It is proposed that the maximum fine of £5000 should be considered, but a
lower fine can be charged if the enforcement authority is satisfied that there are
extenuating circumstances.

5.3

The decision to determine the level of fine will take into account a number of
specific points, but the main areas will be the representations made by the

Page2 2
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

company / person including whether the maximum fine of £5,000 fine would be
disproportionate to the turnover/scale of the business or would lead to the
organisation going out of business.
5.4

6.

Equality impact assessment (EIA)
6.1

7.

The pre impact assessment has indicated that a full impact assessment is not
required.

City Solicitor's comments
7.1

8.

It is anticipated that during early consideration of the activity of an agent or
property manager they will be given a short grace period in which to join one of
the redress schemes rather than impose a fine.

The scheme refers specifically to persons engaged in either property
maintenance work or letting agency work, it is applicable to all persons and
each office. Subject to complying with service of an appropriate notice of
intention and default by the agent then the Authority may impose a financial
sanction for non-scheme membership up to a maximum of £5000.The
imposition of a fine would need to be upon a proportionate basis considering all
the circumstances of the individual case. Upon a fine being imposed appeal
lies to the First Tier Tribunal. Costs awards can be made in this Tribunal; in the
circumstances it is incumbent upon the Authority to be able to justify its earlier
decision and level of sanction. See: The Tribunal Costs and Enforcement Act
2007, section 29(1).

Head of Finance’s comments
8.1

In line with the existing Portfolio Reserve regime, all service managers are
expected to manage their services within their existing cash limits. As a result,
due to there being no additional external funding to meet this new statutory
enforcement role, it has been agreed that due to the adhoc nature of the income
generated through fines, that such income be treated as windfall, and be
retained within the service, to meet the additional enforcement costs going
forward.

8.2

It should be noted that any shortfall in income to fund enforcement costs in the
year will either be met from the Portfolio Reserve or by delivering savings from
elsewhere within the Portfolio.

3 3
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

………………………………………………
Signed by:
Alan Cufley
Head of Corporate Assets, Business and Standards

Appendices:
None
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material
extent by the author in preparing this report:
Title of document
The Redress Schemes for Lettings
Agency Work and Property Management
Work (Requirement to belong to a
Scheme etc) (England) Order 2014

Location
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2014/97
80111116821/contents

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ……………………………… on ………………………………

………………………………………………
Signed by:
Councillor Steve Wemyss
Cabinet Member for Housing

Page4 4
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4

Agenda item:
Title of meeting:

Cabinet Member for Housing

Date of meeting:

16th March 2015

Subject:

TIPTON HOUSE & EDGBASTON HOUSE REFURBISHMENT
CONSULTANTS

Report by:

OWEN BUCKWELL – HEAD OF HOUSING & PROPERTY
SERVICES

Wards affected:

St Thomas

Key decision:

Yes – Over £250,000

Full Council decision:

No

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

To seek permission to appoint an external lead consultant to undertake a
feasibility study, design and manage a scheme to improve and maintain 2No
high rise blocks of flats, Tipton House and Edgbaston House.

1.2

To seek permission to initially spend £100K for external lead consultants to
undertake a full structural survey and feasibility study, providing detailed costed
options to achieve the client brief for the project.
A further report will be submitted to the Cabinet Member for Housing by
December 2015 to seek approval to proceed with the refurbishment works and
will be dependent on the options assessed as part of the feasibility study. The
report will include a financial appraisal for the cost of the works together with the
additional associated fees to design and manage the project with the same lead
consultant, which are estimated to be a further £700K. The additional services
required will include;
Design development of the agreed option, preparing detailed design and
specification for all planning/ building control approvals, procurement of a
contractor to undertake the project, contract administration services together
with project management until handover and cost control until settlement of final
account.

1.3

If approved, it is anticipated that the consultant would commence the feasibility
study in June 2015 and the outcome of the feasibility report will be reported to
the Cabinet Member for Housing by December 2015. If permission is given to
proceed with the scheme it is anticipated that a contractor will commence on site
during 2017.
1 5
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

2.

Recommendations
i. That approval is given to accept a tender for a lead consultant based on
an estimated overall budget of up to £800K for the initial feasibility study,
design and management of the scheme.
ii That following a full tender evaluation, authority to enter into contract
with the preferred bidder is delegated to the Head of Housing and Property
Services in consultation with the Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer.
Iii That approval is given to spend up to £100K for the initial structural
and feasibility report including costed options.

3.

Background

3.1

All the properties in Tipton House and Edgbaston House are located within the
St Thomas ward; both blocks are 18 storeys high and were constructed in 1966
using the 'Bison' precast concrete panel construction method.

3.2

Tipton House and Edgbaston House both contain 136no properties each;
therefore there will be 272no properties included within the proposed scheme.
Each block contains a 50:50 mix of one and two bedroom flats.

3.3

There are two leaseholders that will be affected by the scheme; one leaseholder
is present in each of the blocks.

3.4

The age of the blocks is such that to ensure any refurbishment works are viable
an assurance is required that the building structure will be sustainable as a
lettable asset for at least 30 years.
It is proposed that a full structural survey will be undertaken and any structural
work identified will be incorporated within the proposed scheme. If it is not viable
to refurbish the blocks a further report will be submitted to the Cabinet Member
for Housing recommending an alternative project.

3.5

Both blocks have poor thermal performance due to their height and the built
construction method, typically they have an average RdSAP rating of 52 (Band
E) compared to a PCC housing stock average RdSAP rating of 71 (Band C).
The non-traditional construction of the blocks with regard thermal improvements
is considered 'hard to treat'.
It is proposed that the refurbishment strategy is a whole building approach
wrapping the envelope of the building to improve the thermal performance of the
structure by undertaking external wall insulation, installing replacement triple
glazed windows and a new insulated flat roof.

2 6
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

3.6

The blocks were originally heated using electric underfloor heating. As this has
failed electric night storage heaters have been installed and there is currently a
mixture of heating within the individual properties. Together with the electric hot
water system this is both inefficient and costly for residents.
It is proposed to install new efficient electrical heating to all properties that is
designed appropriately to meet the heating requirement of the properties new
improved thermal performance as part of the scheme. Also incorporated within
the scheme will be improved hot water heating and storage together with
installation of MVHR units will both improve the running costs of the blocks.

3.7

The external and communal areas to both blocks are dated aesthetically and the
communal areas require updating to meet current demands such as mobility
scooters and improved main entrances. Both blocks are in the heart of
Somerstown and have had extensive regeneration works undertaken around
them.
It is proposed to redecorate or clad as appropriate all the external and
communal areas as necessary to improve the aesthetic appearance of the
blocks. The brief for the feasibility will include incorporating modernisation of the
blocks to meet current demands including assessing storage for mobility
scooters, improved entrances with enclosed lobby's, installation of Photo Voltaic
(PV) panels and fire safety measures to maintain the block.

3.8

Within the PCC asset management strategy and 30 year business plan is the
overall plan to refurbish the entire housing stock of high rise blocks of flats. High
rise blocks of flats account for approximately 10% of the housing stock and it is
necessary to maintain them as lettable assets for the next 30 years, ensuring
they continue to meet modern demands of residents and future thermal
performance.
It is anticipated that the construction work at Tipton House and Edgbaston
House will follow on from Wilmcote House within the overall capital programme.

3.9

The estimated costs of the lead consultants throughout the project from
feasibility study to completion of the works and agreeing the final account are as
follows;
Financial Year
2015/2016
2016/2017
2017/2018
2018/2019
2019/2020

Estimated Cost of Lead Consultant
£325,000
£225,000
£150,000
£75,000
£25,000

3 7
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

4.

Reasons for recommendations

4.1

The proposed works are of a specialist nature, it is recommended that external
consultants who are specialists in this field are best placed to offer workable
solutions and add value to the project .This has been demonstrated by the
Wilmcote House project where external consultants were able to develop the
original PCC brief with a solution that exceeded expectations.

4.2

PCC surveying teams currently do not have the capability, skill or experience to
undertake a project of this type as it is outside the scope of traditional planned
maintenance schemes that are undertaken. Whilst the PCC in-house team is
capable of managing traditional planned projects, it is predominantly an
inexperienced team with a high proportion of graduates. Knowledge will be
gained from the consultants that will inform and improve other planned
maintenance projects undertaken by the team.

4.3

The scale of the project and estimated duration of the work would have a
significant impact on the PCC resources in-house and the capacity of the team
to undertake other planned maintenance projects to the remaining housing
stock, utilising external consultants will enable the PCC in-house team to focus
on the rest of the demand for planned maintenance.

4.4

As both blocks are adjacent to each other and identical, packaging both blocks
together should gain efficiencies for developing the design, procuring and
managing the project. There should also be efficiencies at the contractor stage
procuring both blocks as one contract.

5.

Options considered and rejected

5.1

An option considered and rejected was to undertake the project using the PCC
in-house team.
This option was rejected as the team does not have sufficient experience,
knowledge or capacity to solely manage a project of this complexity and scale.

5.2

An option considered and rejected was to not undertake the planned work.
If the work is not undertaken the blocks will deteriorate and will eventually not
become a viable asset, this could eventually result in excessive maintenance
costs or ultimately demolition. Ultimately the loss of 272no assets from the
Housing & Property Services portfolio of stock would adversely impact on the
local community and PCC rental income.
The works form part of the asset management strategy and 30 year business
plan to maintain and improve our properties.

4 8
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

6.

Duty to involve

6.1

Tipton House and Edgbaston House both have established resident panels and
once the consultants have been appointed it is planned to engage with the
groups at the earliest opportunity as part of the feasibility study.
A PCC Resident Liaison Officer will be assigned to undertake consultation and
open days at various stages including before the designs are finalised, when a
contractor is appointed and at various stages during the construction of works
on site.
The aim of the consultation will be to engage with all the residents so that they
are involved in all aspects of the design and procurement of a contractor as well
as supported throughout the works. The lessons from the early resident
engagement undertaken at Wilmcote will be applied to this project.

6.2

The two leaseholders will be consulted early in the project so that they are fully
aware of their responsibilities under the lease, options to pay their contributions
and support available from PCC.

6.3

A Planning application will be required to be submitted at which point all
residents within the wider community will be consulted regarding the proposed
scheme.

6.4

The consultancy service required specifically states that the consultant should
work with PCC to provide resident consultation and allow for the design team to
attend a specific number of open day events.

7.

Implications

7.1

It is considered that the works will have a positive impact by helping to maintain
the properties, whilst also improving the living environment of the individual
properties, visual appearance of the blocks and the surrounding area.

7.2

The works will have positive implications by ensuring that PCC maintains good
quality housing that is easily letable.

7.3

There are two leaseholders within the blocks, there may be implications
regarding the cost of the project or charges to leaseholders, however the
Leasehold & Commercial team will engage with the leaseholders to discuss
options available to them.

7.4

There is potential for negative implication due to the disruption to residents
during the works. Measures will be undertaken to manage this risk and keep
resident disturbance to a minimum during the works and provide respite areas
as necessary.

7.5

The work is subject to the normal legal risk relating to building work, the financial
and technical competence of the chosen contractor together with the disruption
5 9
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

that the work will cause to the occupiers generally. These should all be subject
to existing risk control assessment and mechanisms for such work and as such
minimised before work commences.
8.

Corporate Priorities

8.1

The report and the planned maintenance works will contribute to the following
corporate priorities.

8.2

Shaping the future of Portsmouth, a strategy for growth and prosperity, action
no. 16, to improve the housing stock, including carbon emissions.

8.3

Shaping the future of housing, a strategic plan for Portsmouth for better housing
and better health. The maintenance of Portsmouth's stock of residential
properties is a priority as detailed in theme 5.

9.

Equality impact assessment (EIA)

9.1

An EIA is not needed for this project. The project will not affect any equality
group unequally and this no adverse impact on people who belong to any of the
equality groups. Residents who live in the blocks affected by the project will be
consulted on the work and specific needs will be address so that tenants with
protected characteristics can be fully involved in the consultation. The project is
expected to have positive outcomes for all current and future tenants.

10.

City Solicitor's comments

10.1

The legal risks referred to at paragraph 7.5 above will be addressed through a
detailed procurement process in compliance with the Council’s Contracts
Procedure Rules and managed under the terms of the resulting contract.

10.2

Under Part 2, Section 3 of the City Council’s Constitution (responsibilities of
the Cabinet) and further in accordance with the Scheme of Delegations at
Appendix A to the Executive Procedure Rules in Part 3 of the Constitution, the
Cabinet Member for Housing has the authority to approve the recommendations
set out in this report.

11.

Head of Finance’s comments

11.1

This scheme forms part of line 11, Major Repairs Dwellings, within the Housing
Investment Programme which was formally approved by Full Council on 10
February 2015.

11.2

The complete scheme, which will funded by Housing Revenue Account
Contributions and Leaseholder Contributions, will ensure the ongoing structural
integrity of the blocks and help protect against future deterioration, reduce
ongoing cleaning and maintenance costs and maintain their letability for the next
30 years.

Page6 10
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

11.3

Following the completion of the initial structural and feasibility work, a detailed
financial appraisal, approved by the Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer,
will be required before construction work can commence.

………………………………………………
Signed by:
Owen Buckwell – Head of Housing and Property Services

Appendices:
NIL
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972
NIL
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by the Cabinet Member for Housing on 16th March 2015

………………………………………………
Signed by:
Councillor Steve Weymss

7 11
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

Page 34

Page 35

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

Page 44

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47

Page 48

Page 49

Page 50

Page 51

Page 52

Page 53

Page 54

Page 55

Page 56

Page 57

Page 58

Page 59

Page 60

Agenda Item 6

Agenda item:
Decision maker:

Cabinet Member for Housing
City Council

Subject:

DELIVERING REPLACEMENT HOUSING PROGRAMME,
PHASE 2.

Date of decision:

16th March 2015 (Housing Portfolio)
17th March 2015 (City Council)

Report by:

Head of Housing and Property Services

Wards affected:

All

Key decision:

Yes

Budget & policy framework decision:

Yes

1.

Summary and Purpose of Report

1.1

To seek permission and approval for a programme of 189 replacement Council
homes at an overall cost of £22.903m.

1.2

All new build homes will require planning applications.
The proposed
developments in Havant will be built to be sustainable homes code 3 standard,
whilst the development within Portsmouth will meet code 5 of the sustainable
homes standards.

2.

Background

2.1

Demand for affordable homes in Portsmouth is high and our social housing
stock needs to be replenished following years of sales under the Right to Buy
legislation. The recommendations below are intended to provide much needed
new homes. All homes that are proposed to be planned, designed and built will
be funded by an appropriate mix of prudential HRA borrowing and capital
contributions.

3.

Recommendations

3.1

That the Cabinet Member for Housing request that City Council approve the
following:
1)

the following Capital Expenditure amounting to £22.903m:
1 61
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

I.

A development of 67 units (a mixture of flats and houses) on a disused
allotment site in Havant at a total cost of £8.119m

II.

A development of 50 units (a mixture of houses and flats) at Kingsclere
Avenue at a total cost of £6.059m.

III.

A development of 40 units (a mixture of flats and houses) at Blendworth
Crescent as a total cost of £4.847m.

IV.

A development of 8 houses at Holybourne Road at a total cost of
£969.400.

V.

A development of 24 flats to be built on the existing Buckland Family
centre site at a total cost of £2.908m

2)

to fund the £22.903m of Capital Expenditure, additional borrowing of up to
£15.12m over the next 2 years, alongside the funding already approved
within the existing capital programme.

3)

that subject to the requirements of recommendation 4, authority be
delegated to the Head of Housing and Property Services in consultation
with the Head of Finance & S151 Officer to amend the composition and
spending profile of the proposed schemes in order to meet planning and
design requirements.

4)

that a financial appraisal approved by the Head of Finance & S151 Officer
must be completed prior to the commencement of any scheme, that
confirms that the proposed scheme remains the most viable option and
provides an overall benefit to the 30 year HRA Business Plan

4.

Reasons for recommendations

4.1

These schemes will provide much needed homes for residents and contribute to
the PCC Corporate Priority 6 - "Increase availability, affordability and quality of
housing". The schemes will provide a mix of houses and flats, ranging from one
bed properties through to four bed properties, meeting all ranges of family make
up.

4.2

The bulk of the proposed new homes are in Havant as Portsmouth City Council
is the majority landholder following the gifted land to Portsmouth City Council
from the Staunton Estate at the end of World War 2. Close working
relationships have already been established with Havant Borough Council as
the planning authority, and it is recognised that these new homes will make a
significant contribution to the regeneration of the area.

4.3

These schemes will assist the HRA in meeting Portsmouth City Council’s
commitment to the Department for Communities and Local Government to help

Page2 62
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

deliver replacement homes as per Housing Executive’s decision to retain all
additional Right to Buy receipts on 15 June 2012.
4.4

The schemes will increase the overall number of homes in the HRA, improving
its financial position, and allowing it to continue to adequately manage and
maintain its stock and and tenant services to residents.

5.

Options considered and rejected

5.1

Do nothing. This fails to meet Corporate Objectives and fails to replace the
homes lost under Right to Buy. Not delivering replacement homes will result in
Portsmouth City Council not being able to meet its obligations to the
Department of Communities and Local Government with regard to its
contribution to delivering National one for one replacement of homes sold under
Right to Buy and result in approximately £2.3m of resources leaving the City.

6.

Duty to involve

6.1

Each of the schemes where necessary will undertake individual and substantial
consultation with residents in the local area on the proposed new homes.

7.

Implications

7.1

Approval of these recommendations will provide new, affordable high quality
homes to residents and will benefit a variety of vulnerable residents.

8.

Corporate priorities

8.1

This report and the project it refers to contribute to the following Corporate
Priorities:





Increase availability, affordability and quality of housing
Protect and support our most vulnerable residents
Regenerate the city
Cleaner and greener city

9.

Equality impact assessment (EIA)

9.1

A Preliminary Equality Impact Assessment has been completed and no adverse
equality implications were identified.

3 63
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

10.

Legal implications

10. 1

The recommendations are within the power of the Cabinet Member for Housing
to propose, and for the City Council to approve, and raise no immediate notable
legal implications..

11.

Head of Finance’s comments

11.1

The replacement of homes lost under Right to Buy is a recognised priority, not
only to ensure that Portsmouth City Council maintains a financially viable
Housing Revenue Account for its tenants over a 30 year period, but also to
meet its obligations under the agreement entered into with the Department for
Communities and Local Government on 15 June 2012, which allowed
Portsmouth to retain all additional Right to Buy receipts, providing it spent them
on delivering replacement homes within a 3 year period of their receipt.

11.2

This report seeks approval to commence the design and construction of
approximately £22.9M of new housing over the next 2 years in the following
profile.

Replacement Housing Programme - Phase 2
11.3

2015/16
2016/17
£
£
11,400,700 11,502,800

All Housing Revenue Accounts have a DCLG enforced cap on the amount of
borrowing it is able to undertake, and therefore the number of homes that can
be replaced is also limited. Government recently offered local authorities to bid
to have their debt cap increased, providing they had sites that were ready to be
developed upon and could deliver the homes within a two year period.
Portsmouth's HRA was successful in its bid to deliver the following sites, and as
a result the following additional borrowing, above the previous debt cap, has
been approved.

Riders Lane
Kingsclere Avenue
Blendworth Crescent
Holybourne Road
Buckland Family Centre
TOTAL

Estimated
Total Scheme
number of new
Cost
homes
£
67
8,119,200
50
6,059,100
40
4,847,300
8
969,500
24
2,908,400
189
22,903,500

Increase in
Borrowing Cap
£
5,360,000
4,000,000
3,200,000
640,000
1,920,000
15,120,000

11.4

The remaining £7,783,500 will be funded from existing borrowing headroom,
capital receipts and revenue contributions to capital.

11.5

The total scheme costs above are currently indicative and are prudently based
on the cost of developing 189 three bedroom houses. More detailed costs will
be presented once demand is assessed and the market analysed. Whilst it is
Page4 64

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

anticipated that the costs will reduce, the borrowing cap increase is fixed on a
price per unit basis. It is likely therefore that the existing capital receipts and
revenue contributions that are currently being relied upon will be released in the
future for alternative schemes.
11.6

Whilst the HRA will have the required borrowing headroom to fund the proposed
developments, the Council’s Treasury Management Policy sets a limit as to the
amount of borrowing it intends to take. It should be noted that the proposals
within this paper do not breach the limits set in the Treasury Management
Policy for 2015/16, and the implications of the debt increase in 2016/17 will be
reflected in the Council’s Treasury Management Policy for 2016/17.

11.7

Financial appraisals have been carried out to identify the most financially viable
use of the sites being considered. The options considered were:
 to do nothing,
 to develop the site, or
 to sell the sites with planning permission.
The financial appraisals look at each option over a 30 year period and aim to
identify the most financially viable option, in both Net Present Value and cash
terms. For each site, the best use has been identified and the recommendations
within this report reflect these findings, and represent the best outcome for
Portsmouth City Council, the HRA and its tenants.

11.8

Although these developments are currently aimed at providing the type of
accommodation that are required by the HRA in meeting current and future
housing need across the city, it is recognised that planning requirements may
result in necessary amendments to designs and compositions which may alter
scheme costs and outcomes for the completed dwellings. As a result it is
recommended that authority be delegated to the Head of Housing and Property
Services in consultation with the Head of Finance & S151 Officer to amend the
composition, spending profile and subsequent use of the proposed schemes
following any necessary changes, to ensure that each scheme remains
financially viable.

………………………………………………
Signed by: Owen Buckwell - Head of Housing and Property Services

5 65
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:
Title of document

Location

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by Cabinet Member for Housing on 16 March 2015.

………………………………………………
Signed by: (Cllr Steven Weymss)

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by the Leader of the City Council on 17 March 2015.

………………………………………………
Signed by: [Leader of Portsmouth City Council]

Page6 66
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

